
 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical Center 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, January 16, 2019 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
 Board Members:  Alsop, Berjis, Bigler, Brar, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 

Roll Call: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED 
WITH A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL 
BY KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY STAFF. THE "CA" REPRESENTS THE 
CONSENT AGENDA. CONSENT ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED FIRST AND MAY 
BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR AUDIENCE 
WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS 
DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN LISTED SEQUENCE WITH AN 
OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  1.16.19 
 
 

Page | 2  

 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
 

RECOGNITION 
 

3) Presentation of service awards by the Chief Executive Officer to eleven Kern Medical 
Center employees with 25, 30, and 35 years of service – 
MAKE PRESENTATION 

 
 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

CA 
4) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

December 12, 2018 –  
APPROVE 

 
CA 
5) Proposed Change Order No. 8 to Agreement 056-2018 with Anderson Group 

International, an independent contractor, for construction management services related 
to the Pharmacy USP 797 Clean Room modifications, increasing the maximum payable 
by $28,803, from $705,941 to $729,152, to cover the cost of additional services –  
MAKE FINDING PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER CEQA REVIEW PER 
SECTIONS 15301 AND 15061(b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; APPROVE; 
AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO 
SIGN CHANGE ORDER NO. 9 IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $30,000 

 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  1.16.19 
 
 

Page | 3  

 

CA 
6) Proposed Agreement with CIOX Health, LLC, an independent contractor, containing 

nonstandard terms and conditions, for medical records copying services from January 
16, 2019 through January 15, 2022, in an amount not to exceed $225,000 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
7) Proposed Amendment No. 4 to Agreement 620-2009 with Craneware, Inc., an 

independent contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for purchase of 
Trisus software licenses to maximize coding and billing processes, for the period June 
30, 2009 through June 29, 2022, increasing the maximum payable by $49,462, from 
$2,556,151 to $2,605,613, to cover the term, effective January 17, 2019 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
8) Proposed Agreement with Patrick G. Pieper, M.D., a contract employee, for 

professional medical services in the Department of Surgery from February 1, 2019 
through January 31, 2022, in an amount not to exceed $1,791,000, plus applicable 
benefits –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
9) Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 14818 with Healthcare Performance Group, 

Inc., an independent contractor, for consulting services related to the Cerner 
Millennium project, for the period June 11, 2018 through June 10, 2019, increasing the 
maximum payable by $300,240, from $450,000 to $750,000, to cover the term, 
effective January 16, 2019 – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
10) Proposed retroactive Resolution reaffirming the appointment of Russell V. Judd, 

Andrew J. Cantu, Alton Scott Thygerson, Jared W. Leavitt, Glenn E. Goldis, M.D., and 
Antoinette C. Smith, RN, MSN, to serve as officers of the Kern County Hospital 
Authority –  

 APPROVE; ADOPT RESOLUTION 
 
11) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
12) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
CA 
13) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of December 31, 2018 –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  1.16.19 
 
 

Page | 4  

 

14) Proposed retroactive Agreement with Meridian Healthcare Partners, Inc., an 
independent contractor, for Chief Executive Officer and healthcare management 
services from December 16, 2018 through December 15, 2025, in an amount not to 
exceed $10,236,768 for the period December 16, 2018 through December 15, 2020 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE VICE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

15) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive Officer 
(Government Code Section 54957) –  

 
16) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Vice President & General Counsel Karen S. Barnes and designated staff – 
Unrepresented Employee: Chief Executive Officer (Government Code Section 
54957.6) – 

 
17) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Genovenva Robles, et al. v. 

Kern Medical Center, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-17-102395 
TSC – 

 
18) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority 

trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – 
 
19) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd and designated staff – Employee 
organizations: Committee of Interns and Residents/Service Employees International 
Union, Local 1957 (Government Code Section 54957.6) – 

 
 
RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURN TO WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2019, AT 11:30 A.M. 
 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  1.16.19 
 
 

Page | 5  

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 93306 
during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, following the 
posting of the agenda.  Any supporting documentation that relates to an agenda item for an 
open session of any regular meeting that is distributed after the agenda is posted and prior to 
the meeting will also be available for review at the same location.   

 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code Section 54953.2) 

 

The Kern Medical Center Conference Room is accessible to persons with disabilities. 
Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the 
Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors may request assistance at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California, 
or by calling (661) 326-2102. Every effort will be made to reasonably accommodate individuals 
with disabilities by making meeting material available in alternative formats. Requests for 
assistance should be made five (5) working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  1.16.19 
 
 

Page | 6  

 

13) CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS FILED AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018 – 
RECEIVE AND FILE  
 

A) Claim in the matter of Dina Carrera 
 



 
 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
January 16, 2019 

 
Subject:  Presentation by Chief Executive Officer recognizing Service Awardees for Kern County 
Hospital Authority employees with 25, 30, and 35 years of service  

 
Recommended Action:  Make presentation 
 
Summary:   
 
25 years of Service: 
 

 Dianne McConnehey, Clinical Director, Quality Resource Center Department, August 1993  

 Andre Esquivel, Building Services Worker III, Housekeeping Department, September 1993  

 Irene Varela, Hospital Staff Nurse, OR Department, October 1993 

 Shirley Clemente, Hospital Staff Nurse, Central Receiving Facility – Kern County Jail Department, 
October 1993 

 Luz Domingo, Hospital Staff Nurse, Post‐Partum Department, November 1993  

 Martha Montemayor, Hospital Staff Nurse, Post‐Partum Department, December 1993  
 
 
30 years of Service: 
 

 Manuel Acosta, PACS Administrator, Radiology Department, August 1988  

 Antonio Garcia, Physician, Medstaff‐OB/GYN Department, August 1988 

 Roberto Dominguez, PeriOperative Associate, OR Department, October 1988 

 Cynthia Aguilar, Patient Care Technician, Emergency Department, November 1988 
 

 
35 years of Service: 
 

 Roy Clark, Storekeeper, Nutrition Services Department, December 1983  
 



 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, December 12, 2018 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 

BOARD RECONVENED 
 
Directors Present: Berjis, Bigler, Brar, Lawson, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 
Directors Absent: None 
 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item. For example, Lawson-McLaughlin 
denotes Director Lawson made the motion and Vice Chair McLaughlin seconded the motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH 
A "CA" WERE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 

 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 

 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

 
1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 

not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  12.12.18 
 
 

Page | 2  
 

LARONDA DILLARD-SMITH, RN, HEARD REGARDING A NURSE PRACTITIONER 
WHO WAS RECENTLY TERMINATED DURING HER PROBATIONARY PERIOD 
 
CARMEN MORALES-BOARD, RETIRED NP, HEARD REGARDING THE NURSING 
PRACTICE ACT 
 

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
DIRECTOR BERJIS REPORTED ON THE UPCOMING MEETING AT KERN 
MEDICAL CENTER WITH THE DEAN AND VICE DEAN FOR EDUCATION OF 
DAVID GEFFEN SCHOOL OF MEDICINE AT UCLA ON JANUARY 11, 2019  

 
RECOGNITION 

 
3) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing Assistant County 

Administrative Officer Nancy Lawson for her service on the Kern County Hospital 
Authority Board of Governors –  
MADE PRESENTATION; DIRECTOR LAWSON AND RUSSELL V. JUDD, CHIEF 
EXEXUTIVE OFFICER, HEARD 
 

4) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing Kern Medical Center nursing 
graduates from other countries –  
MADE PRESENTATION; RUSSELL V. JUDD, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, TONI 
SMITH, CHIEF NURSING OFFICER, PATRICK SEVEGNY, RN, AND LATOYA 
GRAHAM, RN, HEARD 

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
CA 
5) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

November 14, 2018 –  
APPROVED 
Lawson-Pelz: 7 Ayes  

 
CA 
6) Proposed Resolution establishing regular meeting dates of the Kern County Hospital 

Authority Board of Governors for calendar year 2019 – 
 APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2018-017 

Lawson-Pelz: 7 Ayes  
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  12.12.18 
 
 

Page | 3  
 

 
CA 
7) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 04416 with F. Rolin Inspection, 

an independent contractor, for OSHPD inspection services for the period of July 1, 
2016 through June 30, 2019, extending the term for one year from July 1, 2019 through 
June 30, 2020, increasing the hourly rate from $96 to $98 per hour, and increasing the 
maximum payable by $200,000, from $249,000 to $449,000, to cover the term, 
effective November 14, 2018 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 083-2018 
Lawson-Pelz: 7 Ayes  

 
CA 
8) Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 07816 with Paul Dhanens Architect, Inc., 

an independent contractor, for engineering and architectural services for the period 
July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019, extending the term for two years from July 1, 2019 
through June 30, 2021, and increasing the maximum payable by $200,000, from 
$250,000 to $450,000, to cover the term, effective December 12, 2018 – 
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 084-2018 
Lawson-Pelz: 7 Ayes  

 
CA 
9) Proposed acceptance of donation from Federal Emergency Management Agency 

Center for Domestic Preparedness for travel and related expenses to cover all costs 
for ten Kern Medical Center employees to attend the “Healthcare Leadership for Mass 
Casualty Incidents and Integrated Capstone Event” training in Anniston, Alabama, from 
January 13 through January 19, 2019 –  

 APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2018-018 
Lawson-Pelz: 7 Ayes  

 
NOTE: DIRECTOR BERJIS ANNOUNCED THAT, DUE TO HIS EMPLOYMENT WITH 
THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY, HE WOULD RECUSE HIMSELF 
FROM THE VOTE ON ITEM 10 AND LEFT THE DAIS AT 11:46 A.M. 

 
10) Proposed Agreement with Amir Berjis, M.D., a contract employee, for professional 

medical services in the Department of Surgery from January 4, 2019 through January 
3, 2022, in an amount not to exceed $1,905,000 – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 085-2018 
McLaughlin-Sistrunk: 6 Ayes; 1 Abstention - Berjis  

 
NOTE: DIRECTOR BERJIS RETURNED TO THE DAIS AT 11:48 A.M. AFTER THE 
VOTE ON ITEM 10 

 
 
 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  12.12.18 
 
 

Page | 4  
 

 
CA 
11) Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 30917 with Fowrooz S. Joolhar, M.D., a 

contract employee, for professional medical services in the Department of Medicine for 
the period September 30, 2017 through September 29, 2020, amending the job 
description to include a provision of invasive cardiology services, increasing the annual 
salary from $425,000 to $520,000 per year, and increasing the maximum payable by 
$239,025, from $1,297,500 to $1,536,525, to cover the term, effective December 13, 
2018 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN AGREEMENT 
086-2018 
Lawson-Pelz: 7 Ayes  

 
12) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 
 Berjis-Brar: 7 Ayes 
 
13) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 
 Pelz-Berjis: 7Ayes 
 
CA 
14) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of November 30, 2018 –  

RECEIVED AND FILED 
Lawson-Pelz: 7 Ayes  

 
CA 
15) Miscellaneous Correspondence 
 RECEIVED AND FILED 

Lawson-Pelz: 7 Ayes  
 
 
ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
Sistrunk-McLaughlin 

 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

16) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 
Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
17) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health facilities (Health and 

Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  12.12.18 
 
 

Page | 5  
 

18) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: One (1) 

Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice 
of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not limited to, an 
accident, disaster, incident, or transactional occurrence that might result in litigation 
against the Authority and that are known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs – SEE 
RESULTS BELOW 

 
19) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority 

trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – SEE RESULTS 
BELOW 

 
20) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive Officer 

(Government Code Section 54957) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
21) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Vice President & General Counsel Karen S. Barnes and designated staff – 
Unrepresented Employee: Chief Executive Officer (Government Code Section 
54957.6) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
RECONVENED FROM CLOSED SESSION 
Berjis-Pelz 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Item No. 16 concerning Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health 
practitioners (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE (MOTION BY DIRECTOR LAWSON, SECOND BY DIRECTOR 
PELZ), THE BOARD APPROVED ALL PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL 
APPOINTMENT, REAPPOINTMENT, RELEASE OF PROCTORING, VOLUNTARY 
RESIGNATION OF PRIVILEGES, AND AUTOMATIC TERMINATION OF 
PRIVILEGES; NO OTHER REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 Item No. 17 concerning Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health 

facilities (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE 
ACTION TAKEN 

 
Item No. 18 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: One 
(1) Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the 
advice of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not limited 
to, an accident, disaster, incident, or transactional occurrence that might result in 
litigation against the Authority and that are known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs – 
HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  12.12.18 
 
 

Page | 6  
 

 Item No. 19 concerning Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or 
taking action on authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) 
– HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 Item No. 20 concerning PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: 

Chief Executive Officer (Government Code Section 54957) – HEARD; NO 
REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 Item No. 21 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency 

designated representatives: Vice President & General Counsel Karen S. Barnes and 
designated staff – Unrepresented Employee: Chief Executive Officer (Government 
Code Section 54957.6) – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 
ADJOURNED TO WEDNESDAYJANUARY 16, 2019, AT 11:30 A.M. 
Sistrunk 
 
 
 
/s/ Mona A. Allen 

Authority Board Coordinator 
 
 
 
/s/ Russell E. Bigler 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
 Kern County Hospital Authority 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
January 16, 2019 
 
Subject:  Propose Change Order No. 8 to the Construction Agreement with Anderson Group 
International for the Pharmacy USP 797 Clean Room Modification Project 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign and authorize Chief Executive Officer to 
sign Change Order No. 9 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Change Order No. 8, with Anderson Group 
International to allow for further modifications in the Pharmacy USP 797 Clean Room Project.  
 
During what was to be the final air balance test, the existing air handler servicing this space was found to need 
modifications to produce adequate air flow and to maintain the appropriate air balance within the new and 
existing space. This work was not identified in the original design, but use of force account for time and 
materials appears to be the most effective process to complete this additional scope of work.   
 
This Change Order No. 8 requires an increase of $28,803 in the agreement’s maximum payable exceed amount 
for a new maximum payable of $729,152. This project will require one additional change order to replace the 
damaged ducting above the pharmacy and a final air balance test.   

 
Previous Change Orders 

CO 1  Compensate contractor for unforeseen plumbing and framing issues at the D Wing 

Lobby Restroom. 

$16,771 

CO 2  Project  was  designed  for  USP  797  State  requirements.    It  was  determined  after 

construction  started  that  the USP  800  requirements  should  be  implemented  into 

the project.  This added additional scope and time to the project.   

$23,707 

CO 3  Compensate contractor for additional plumbing needs at the D Lobby Restroom and 

to remove, modify, and reinstall  the existing doors to accommodate the new wall 

and flooring materials.   

$6,539 

CO 4  Existing fire sprinkler piping, previously installed under an approved OSHPD project, 

had to be changed out to meet new code requirements;  original 1953 construction 

did not meet current 2 hour fire rating, requiring additional framing and drywall to 

be installed; and the cabinets as designed did not meet staffing needs and needed 

to be modified prior to installation. 

$45,887 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
CO 5  The  existing  hoods  to  be  installed  at  the  new  clean  rooms  must  have  casters 

installed  so  the  systems  can  be  pulled  out  and  cleaned  as  required  by  Board  of 

Pharmacy. 

$8,067 

 CO 6  It was originally planned for Kern Medical Engineering staff to install and anchor the 

existing hoods in the new space.  However, it was determined that this work should 

be completed by  the Contractor; and properly cover exposed plumbing under the 

new sinks. 

$10,524 

CO 7  For  safety  purposes  contractor was  directed  to  relocate  an  electrical  switch  from 

over  a  wet  sink;    OSHPD  Fire  Life  Safety  Officer  required we  install  two  speaker 

strobe fire alarm devices. 

$6,431 

 
 
Therefore, Kern Medical recommends that your Board approve the Change Order No. 8 to the Construction 
Agreement with Anderson Group International for the Pharmacy USP 797 Clean Room Modification Project and 
direct the Chief Executive Officer to approve the final change order in an amount not to exceed $30,000, for a 
total maximum payable amount of $759,152. 
 









 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
January 16, 2019 
 
Subject:  Proposed Master Services Agreement with CIOX Health, LLC 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 

Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed master services agreement with CIOX Health, 
LLC, to provide copying services for medical records. This agreement is for a term of 3 years with a not‐
to‐exceed amount of $225,000.  
 
Kern Medical entered into the original agreement with CIOX, formerly Health Port, on January 1, 2009, 
to provide copies of medical records that are requested by patients, insurance companies, attorneys, 
law enforcement, state/federal agencies, and any other agencies that request the information. CIOX 
ensures that all of their staff, who process the protected health information, have training, from their 
internal education programs, to ensure that they are educated on all regulatory requirements for 
handling documents that require confidentiality and security.  
 
The budgeted cost of this agreement is $75,000 per year. The cost is based on an average of the past 
two years of pages copied at $0.25 per page and using the services in‐house for business purposes. The 
actual cost varies due to the variable amount of billable items that CIOX is able to bill for and the 
number of requests. In the past, unexpected audits have increased the cost beyond the budgeted not‐
to‐exceed maximum and an urgent amendment had to be requested. The budgeted cost now includes 
the possibility of a large audit or print request.   
 

Previous Agreement  Proposed New Agreement  Variance 

2009 – 2016 ‐ $166,228 
2017‐2018 ‐ $100,000 

Previous Not‐To‐Exceed $266,228 

2019 – 2021 ‐ $225,000  $25,000 per 
year 

 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the master services agreement with CIOX for 
medical record copying services for the period of January 16, 2019 through January 15, 2022 in an 
amount not to exceed $225,000. 
 
The Agreement contains non‐standard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel due to 
objectionable indemnification language, interest on late payments, no termination without cause, a 
monetary penalty for early termination not in accordance with the language of the agreement, auto‐
renewal of the term, and a limitation of liability.     



























































 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
January 16, 2019 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 4 to Agreement for Intellectual Property License and Service with 

Craneware, Inc. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Amendment No. 4 with Craneware, Inc., to provide 
additional software functionality with the addition of Trisus Supply solution, Chargemaster Toolkit, Online 
Reference Toolkit for CMT, Pricing Analyzer, Physician Revenue Toolkit, Pharmacy ChargeLink, Insight Audit, and 
Trisus Supply Early Adopter to review and assess current data, to maximize coding and billing opportunities, and 
assist in establishing ongoing monitoring process to sustain financial and process improvements.  
  
The cost of adding the new Trisus Supply solution is being offset by the removal of the Bill Analyzer solution.  
 

Previous Agreements  Proposed New Agreement  Variance 

Original Agreement ‐ $463,197 
Amendment No. 1 ‐ $1,363,933 
Amendment No. 2 ‐ $792,021 

Amendment No. 3 ‐ $0 
Previous Not‐To‐Exceed $2,556, 151 

Amendment No. 4  
Proposed Not‐To‐Exceed $2,605,613 

$49,462 for the 
removal and 
addition of 
software 

 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve Amendment No. 4 with Craneware Inc. for the addition 
of the Trisus Supply solution for the period of January 17, 2019 through June 29, 2022 for an additional fee of 
$49,462 with a maximum not to exceed of $2,605,613, and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 
The Agreement contains non‐standard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel due to an 
additional third party beneficiary who is not a party to the Agreement, will not participate in the indemnification 
terms, including infringement, and a limitation of liability to the previous twelve months of fees. 
 
 



























 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
January 16, 2019 
 
Subject:  Proposed Agreement with Patrick G. Pieper, M.D., for professional medical services in the 
Department of Surgery 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:  Kern Medical requests your Board approve an agreement with Patrick G. Pieper, M.D., for 

professional medical services in the Department of Surgery.  Dr. Pieper will serve as a full‐time otolaryngology, 
head and neck surgeon in the Department as well as Medical Director of the Laser and Aesthetics Center.   
 
The proposed Agreement is for an initial term of three‐years from February 1, 2019 through January 31, 2022. 
 

Annual Salary 
$540,000 base salary for teaching and administrative duties and as payment for 
care of Kern Medical patients   

Excess Call Coverage  $500 per 24‐hour day for call coverage that exceeds one in four (1:4) days 

Medical Director Stipend 
$1,153.84 biweekly not to exceed $30,000 annually for services as Medical Director 
of the Laser and Aesthetics Center 

Starting bonus  Dr. Pieper will receive a starting bonus of $45,000 

Benefits  Dr. Pieper will receive the standard complement of physician benefits 

 
The maximum payable will not to exceed $1,791,000 over the three‐year term of the Agreement. 
 
Dr. Pieper’s annual salary is calculated based on the current Medical Group Management Association Physician 
Compensation and Production Survey for specialty and represents the reasonable fair market value 
compensation for the services provided by Dr. Pieper. 

   
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Agreement with Patrick G. Pieper, M.D., for 
professional medical services in the Department of Surgery from February 1, 2019 through January 31, 2022, in 
an amount not to exceed $1,791,000 over the three‐year term, and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 



1 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

CONTRACT EMPLOYEE 

(Kern County Hospital Authority – Patrick G. Pieper, M.D.) 
 

 This Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of __________, 2019, between 

the Kern County Hospital Authority, a local unit of government (“Authority”), which owns and 

operates Kern Medical Center (“KMC”), and Patrick G. Pieper, M.D. (“Physician”). 

 

I. 

RECITALS 

  

(a) Authority is authorized, pursuant to section 101852 of Part 4 of Division 101 of 

the Health and Safety Code, to contract for special services with individuals specially trained, 

experienced, expert, and competent to perform those services; and 

 

(b) Authority requires the assistance of Physician to provide professional medical 

services in the Department of Surgery at KMC (the “Department”), as such services are 

unavailable from Authority resources, and Physician desires to accept employment on the terms 

and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and 

  

(c) Physician has special training, knowledge and experience to provide such 

services; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 

hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 

agree as follows: 

 

II. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. Term.  The initial term of this Agreement (“Initial Term”) shall be for a period of three 

(3) years, commencing as of February 1, 2019 (the “Commencement Date”).  At the end of the 

Initial Term and each Renewal Term (as hereinafter defined), if any, this Agreement may be 

renewed for two (2) additional terms of two (2) years each (“Renewal Term”), but only upon 

mutual written agreement of the parties.  As used herein, the “Term” of this Agreement shall 

mean the Initial Term and all Renewal Terms.  As used herein, an “Employment Year” shall 

mean the annual period beginning on the Commencement Date and each annual period 

thereafter. 

 

2. Employment.  Authority hereby employs Physician for the practice of medicine in the 

care and treatment of patients at KMC, or at such other clinic sites as KMC may designate 

(collectively referred to as the “Practice Sites”).  It is expressly understood and agreed that KMC 

shall have reasonable discretion to consolidate and relocate clinics operated by Authority and to 

re-designate Practice Sites served by Physician from time to time.  Physician shall be subject to 

Authority’s employment policies, directives, rules and regulations as promulgated by Authority 

from time to time, including, but not limited to, those pertaining to employees. 



2 
 

3. Representations and Warranties.  Physician represents and warrants to Authority and 

KMC, upon execution and throughout the Term of this Agreement, as follows: (i) Physician is 

not bound by any agreement or arrangement which would preclude Physician from entering into, 

or from fully performing the services required under this Agreement; (ii) Physician’s license to 

practice medicine in the state of California or in any other jurisdiction has never been denied, 

suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary action, or 

made subject to the terms of probation or other restriction; (iii) Physician’s medical staff 

privileges at any health care facility have never been denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, 

voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary action, or made subject to terms of probation 

or any other restriction; (iv) Physician holds a valid Controlled Substance Registration 

Certificate issued by the Drug Enforcement Administration that has never been revoked, 

suspended, terminated, relinquished, placed on terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (v) 

Physician is not currently and has never been an Ineligible Person1; (vi) Physician is not 

currently the subject of a disciplinary or other proceeding or action before any governmental, 

professional, medical staff or peer review body; and (vii) Physician has, and shall maintain 

throughout the term of this Agreement, an unrestricted license to practice medicine in the state of 

California and staff membership and privileges at KMC. 

 

4. Obligations of Physician. 

 

 4.1 Services.  Physician shall engage in the practice of medicine on a full-time basis 

exclusively as an exempt employee of Authority.  Physician shall render those services set forth 

in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

4.2 Use of Premises.  Physician shall use the Practice Sites as designated by Authority 

or KMC exclusively for the practice of medicine in the care and treatment of patients and shall 

comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations related thereto. 

 

4.3 Qualifications.   

 

4.3.1 Licensure.  Physician shall maintain a current valid license to practice 

medicine in the state of California at all times during the Term of this Agreement. 

 

4.3.2 Board Certification.  Physician shall be board certified by the American 

Board of Otolaryngology in head and neck surgery-general and maintain such 

certification at all times during the Term of this Agreement.   

 

4.3.3 Medical Staff Status.  Physician shall at all times during the Term of this 

Agreement be a member in good standing of the KMC medical staff with “active” staff 

status and hold all clinical privileges on the active medical staff appropriate to the 

discharge of his obligations under this Agreement. 

                                                      
1 An “Ineligible Person” is an individual or entity who: (i) is currently excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise 

ineligible to participate in the federal health care programs or in federal procurement or non-procurement programs; 

or (ii) has been convicted of a criminal offense that falls within the range of activities described in 42 U.S.C. § 

1320a-7(a), but has not yet been excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise declared ineligible. 

 



3 
 

 

4.3.4 TJC and ACGME Compliance.  Physician shall observe and comply with 

all applicable standards and recommendations of The Joint Commission and 

Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education. 

 

4.4 Loss or Limitation.  Physician shall notify KMC in writing as soon as possible 

(but in any event within three (3) business days) after any of the following events occur: (i) 

Physician’s license to practice medicine in the state of California lapses or is denied, suspended, 

revoked, terminated, relinquished or made subject to terms of probation or other restriction; (ii) 

Physician’s medical staff privileges at KMC or any other health care facility are denied, 

suspended, revoked, terminated, relinquished under threat of disciplinary action or made subject 

to terms of probation or other restriction; (iii) Physician’s Controlled Substance Registration 

Certificate issued by the Drug Enforcement Administration is revoked, suspended, terminated, 

relinquished, placed on terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (iv) Physician becomes 

debarred, excluded, or suspended, or if any other event occurs that makes Physician an Ineligible 

Person; (v) Physician becomes the subject of a disciplinary or other proceeding or action before 

any governmental, professional, medical staff or peer review body; or (vi) an event occurs that 

substantially interrupts all or a portion of Physician’s professional practice or that materially 

adversely affects Physician’s ability to perform Physician’s obligations hereunder. 

 

4.5 Standards of Medical Practice.  The standards of medical practice and 

professional duties of Physician at designated Practice Sites shall be in accordance with the 

KMC medical staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies, the standards for physicians 

established by the state Department of Public Health and all other state and federal laws and 

regulations relating to the licensure and practice of physicians, and The Joint Commission. 

 

4.6 Managed Care Contracting.  Physician shall cooperate in all reasonable respects 

necessary to facilitate KMC’s entry into or maintenance of any third-party payer arrangements 

for the provision of services under any other public or private health and/or hospital care 

programs, including but not limited to insurance programs, self-funded employer health 

programs, health care service plans and preferred provider organizations.  To enable KMC to 

participate in any third-party payer arrangements, Physician shall, upon request: (i) enroll as a 

provider (if required by the third-party payer), separate from KMC, with any third-party payer or 

intermediate organization (including any independent practice association) (each, a “Managed 

Care Organization”) designated by KMC for the provision of professional services to patients 

covered by such Managed Care Organization; (ii) enter into a written agreement with such 

Managed Care Organization as may be necessary or appropriate for the provision of professional 

services to patients covered by such Managed Care Organization; and/or (iii) enter into a written 

agreement with KMC regarding global billing, capitation or other payment arrangements as may 

be necessary or appropriate for the provision of professional services to patients covered by such 

Managed Care Organization. 

 

4.7 Authorization to Release Information.  Physician hereby authorizes Managed 

Care Organizations, government programs, hospitals and other third parties to release to KMC 

and its agents any information requested by KMC or its agents from time to time relating to 

Physician’s professional qualifications or competency.  Physician agrees to execute the 



4 
 

Authorization to Release Information in the form set forth in Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference, and to execute all other documents required by KMC from 

time to time and to otherwise fully cooperate with KMC to enable KMC and its agents to obtain 

such information from third parties.   

 

4.8 Medical Records.  Physician shall cause a complete medical record to be timely 

prepared and maintained for each patient seen by Physician.  This record shall be prepared in 

compliance with all state and federal regulations, standards of The Joint Commission, and the 

KMC medical staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies.  Documentation by Physician shall 

conform to the requirements for evaluation and management (E/M) services billed by teaching 

physicians set forth in the Medicare Carriers Manual, Part 3, sections 15016-15018, inclusive.  

All patient medical records of Practice Sites, including without limitation, patient medical 

records generated during the Term of this Agreement, shall be the property of KMC subject to 

the rights of the respective patients.  Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement by 

either party for any reason, KMC shall retain custody and control of such patient medical 

records. 

  

4.9 Physician Private Practice.  Physician understands and agrees that he shall not 

enter into any other physician employment contract or otherwise engage in the private practice of 

medicine or provide similar services to other organizations, directly or indirectly, during the 

Term of this Agreement or any extensions thereof.   

 

4.10 Proprietary Information.  Physician acknowledges that during the Term of this 

Agreement Physician will have contacts with and develop and service KMC patients and 

referring sources of business of KMC.  In all of Physician’s activities, Physician, through the 

nature of his work, will have access to and will acquire confidential information related to the 

business and operations of KMC, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 

patient lists and confidential information relating to processes, plans, methods of doing business 

and special needs of referring doctors and patients.  Physician acknowledges that all such 

information is solely the property of KMC and constitutes proprietary and confidential 

information of KMC; and the disclosure thereof would cause substantial loss to the goodwill of 

KMC; and that disclosure to Physician is being made only because of the position of trust and 

confidence that Physician will occupy.  Physician covenants that, except as required by law, 

Physician will not, at any time during the Term or any time thereafter, disclose to any person, 

hospital, firm, partnership, entity or organization (except when authorized in writing by KMC) 

any information whatsoever pertaining to the business or operations of KMC, any affiliate 

thereof or of any other physician employed by KMC, including without limitation, any of the 

kinds of information described in this paragraph.   

  

4.11 Physician Covenants.  Physician covenants that from the Commencement Date 

and continuing throughout the Term of this Agreement, Physician, unless otherwise permitted by 

the written consent of Authority shall not, on Physician’s own account or as an employee, 

landlord, lender, trustee, associate, consultant, partner, agent, principal, contractor, owner, 

officer, director, investor, member or stockholder of any other person, or in any other capacity, 

directly or indirectly, in whole or in part: (i) engage in any activities that are in competition with 

KMC, including the operation of any medical practice or offering of any medical services that 



5 
 

are similar to services offered at the Practice Sites; (ii) solicit or encourage the resignation of any 

employee of Authority or KMC with whom Physician had a working relationship during 

Physician’s employment with Authority; (iii) solicit or divert patients with whom Physician had 

personal contact during such employment; or (iv) influence or attempt to influence any payer, 

provider or other person or entity to cease, reduce or alter any business relationship with 

Authority or KMC relating to the Practice Sites. 

 

5. Compensation Package. 

 

5.1 Annual Compensation.  Physician shall work full time, which is a minimum of 80  

hours per biweekly pay period, and will be compensated with cash and other value as described 

below in this paragraph 5.1 (“Annual Salary”).   

 

5.1.1 Annual Salary.  Authority shall pay Physician an Annual Salary comprised 

of (i) a base salary for teaching and administrative duties and (ii) payment for care of 

KMC patients in the amount of $540,000 per year, to be paid as follows: Physician shall 

be paid $20,769.23 biweekly not to exceed $540,000 annually.  Physician understands 

and agrees that (i) the Annual Salary set forth in this paragraph 5.1 is calculated based on 

the current Medical Group Management Association Physician Compensation and 

Production Survey (“MGMA Survey”) for specialty and (ii) Physician will maintain a 

median level of worked relative value units (“Worked RVU”) based on the current 

MGMA Survey and fulfill all the duties set forth in Exhibit “A” during the Term of this 

Agreement.   

 

5.1.2 Biweekly Payment.  Physician shall be paid biweekly on the same 

schedule as regular Authority employees.  The exact date of said biweekly payments shall 

be at the sole discretion of Authority.  All payments made by Authority to Physician shall 

be subject to all applicable federal and state taxes and withholding requirements. 

 

5.1.3 Fair Market Value Compensation.  The compensation provided under 

section 5.1 represents the parties’ good faith determination of the reasonable fair market 

value compensation for the services to be provided by Physician under this Agreement.  

 

5.2 Excess Call Coverage.  Authority will pay Physician a fixed fee in the amount of 

$500 per 24-hour day for call coverage that exceeds one in four (1:4) days.  All payments made 

by Authority to Physician shall be subject to all applicable federal and state taxes and 

withholding requirements. 

 

5.3 Medical Director Stipend.  Authority shall pay Physician a stipend of $1,153.84 

biweekly not to exceed $30,000 annually for services as Medical Director of the Laser and 

Aesthetics Center.  If the conditions for Physician to receive the stipend are met, the stipend 

would become payable to Physician commencing February 1, 2019, and each biweekly pay 

period thereafter.  Physician understands and agrees that he must remain in the position of 

Medical Director of the Laser and Aesthetics Center as of each biweekly payout date in order to 

earn and receive the stipend payment.  All stipend payments made by Authority to Physician 

shall be subject to all applicable federal and state taxes and withholding requirements. 



6 
 

 

5.4 Signing Bonus.   

 

5.4.1 Bonus.  Physician shall receive a signing bonus in the amount of $45,000, 

less all applicable federal and state taxes and withholdings, payable on or after January 

16, 2019.  Physician shall forfeit the signing bonus if he fails to report to work on the 

Commencement Date.   

 

5.4.2 Repayment.  In the event that Physician voluntarily terminates his 

employment with Authority for any reason whatsoever before the first anniversary of this 

Agreement, Physician will repay to Authority an amount equal to $45,000 multiplied by 

the fraction, the numerator of which is 365 less the number of days during which 

Physician was employed by Authority, and the denominator of which is 365.  Such 

repayment shall be made by Physician in full within 30 days of the effective date of his 

termination of employment with Authority. 

 

5.4.3 Offset.  Physician hereby authorizes Authority to offset against and reduce 

any amounts otherwise due to Physician for any amounts in respect of the obligation to 

repay the signing bonus. 

 

5.5 Professional Fee Billing.   

 

5.5.1 Assignment.  KMC shall have the exclusive right and authority to set, bill, 

collect and retain all fees, including professional fees, for all direct patient care services 

provided by Physician during the Term of this Agreement.  All professional fees 

generated by Physician during the Term of this Agreement, including without limitation, 

both cash collections and accounts receivable, capitated risk pool fees, professional 

retainer fees, honoraria, professional consulting and teaching fees, and fees for expert 

testimony (but excluding Physician’s private investment and nonprofessional income), 

will be the sole and exclusive property of KMC, whether received by KMC or by 

Physician and whether received during the Term of this Agreement or anytime thereafter.  

Physician hereby assigns all rights to said fees and accounts to KMC and shall execute all 

documents required from time to time by KMC and otherwise fully cooperate with KMC 

to enable KMC to collect fees and accounts from patients and third-party payers. 

 

5.5.2 Remittance of Professional Fee Charges.  Physician shall remit all 

professional fee charges to KMC within 45 days of the date direct patient care services 

are provided by Physician.  Any professional fee charges not remitted by Physician to 

KMC within 45 days of the date of such service, or any charges for which relevant 

documentation has not been provided, will not be credited to Physician as Worked RVU. 

 

5.6 Maximum Payable.  The maximum compensation payable under this Agreement 

shall not exceed $1,791,000 over the three-year Initial Term of this Agreement. 

 

6. Benefits Package. 

 



7 
 

6.1 Retirement.  Physician shall participate in the Kern County Hospital Authority 

Defined Contribution Plan for Physician Employees (the “Plan”), a qualified defined 

contribution pension plan, pursuant to the terms of the instrument under which the Plan has been 

established, as from time to time amended.  Physician is not eligible to participate in any other 

retirement plan established by Authority for its employees, including but not limited to the Kern 

County Employees’ Retirement Association, and this Agreement does not confer upon Physician 

any right to claim entitlement to benefits under any such retirement plan(s). 

 

6.2 Health Care Coverage.  Physician shall receive the same health benefits (medical, 

dental, prescription and vision coverage) as all eligible Authority employees.  The employee 

share of cost is 20% of the current biweekly premium.  Physician is eligible for coverage the first 

day of the biweekly payroll period coincident with or next following the day he completes one 

(1) month of continuous service.  Physician’s initial hire date is the initial opportunity to enroll in 

the health plan.  Physician must work at least 40 hours per biweekly pay period to be eligible for 

coverage. 

 

6.3 Holidays.  Physician shall be entitled to all paid holidays authorized as official 

holidays for Authority employees.  A holiday occurring on a Sunday shall be observed on the 

following Monday and a holiday occurring on a Saturday shall be observed on the preceding 

Friday.  In the event Physician is scheduled for and works on a holiday, he shall be entitled to an 

equivalent period of time off at a later date.  Physician will not be paid for banked holidays upon 

termination of employment. 

 

6.4 Vacation.  Physician shall be credited with vacation leave of 6.15 hours for each 

pay period of service, for a maximum accrual of 160 hours per year.  Vacation leave will accrue 

from the Commencement Date and may be taken at any time thereafter.  Total unused vacation 

leave accumulated will not exceed a maximum of 320 hours.  No further vacation leave will 

accrue as long as Physician has the maximum number of hours credited.  The Department chair 

must approve all vacation leave in advance.  Physician shall be paid for accrued and unused 

vacation leave, if any, upon termination or expiration of this Agreement calculated at Physician’s 

current hourly rate (i.e., current Annual Salary divided by 2080 hours = hourly rate).  All 

payments made by Authority to Physician under this paragraph will be subject to all applicable 

federal and state taxes and withholding requirements.   
    

6.5 Sick Leave.  Physician shall accrue sick leave in accordance with Authority 

policy, as amended from time to time.  Physician will not be paid for accrued and unused sick 

leave upon termination of employment.   

 

6.6 Education Leave.  Physician shall receive 80 hours paid education leave annually.  

The first 80 hours will accrue on the Commencement Date.  On each successive Employment 

Year, if any, an additional 80 hours paid education leave will accrue.  Education leave must be 

used within the year that it is accrued.  Physician will not be paid for unused education leave 

upon termination of employment.  The Department chair must approve education leave in 

advance of use.  Physician’s participation in educational programs, services or other approved 

activities set forth herein shall be subordinate to Physician’s obligations and duties under this 

Agreement. 



8 
 

6.7 CME Expense Reimbursement.  Authority shall reimburse Physician for all 

approved reasonable and necessary expenditures related to continuing medical education in an 

amount not to exceed $2,500 per Employment Year, payable in arrears, in accordance with 

Authority policy, as amended from time to time.  This amount may not be accumulated or 

accrued and does not continue to the following Employment Year. 

 

6.8 Kern$Flex.  Physician shall be eligible to participate in flexible spending plans to 

pay for dependent care, non-reimbursed medical expenses, and certain insurance premiums on a 

pre-tax basis through payroll deduction.  This is a voluntary benefit that is paid by Physician if 

he elects to participate in the plan. 

 

6.9 Attendance at Meetings.  Physician shall be permitted to be absent from KMC 

during normal working days to attend professional meetings and to attend to such outside 

professional duties in the healthcare field as may be mutually agreed upon between Physician 

and the Department chair.  Attendance at such approved meetings and accomplishment of 

approved professional duties shall be fully compensated service time and will not be considered 

vacation or education leave.   

 

6.10 Unpaid Leave of Absence.  Physician may take an unpaid leave of absence in 

accordance with Authority policies in effect at the time the leave is taken. 

 

6.11 Social Security.  Physician is exempt from payment of Social Security taxes as the 

Kern County Hospital Authority Defined Contribution Plan for Physician Employees is a 

qualified alternative to the insurance system established by the federal Social Security Act. 

 

6.12 Deferred Compensation.  Physician shall be eligible to participate in the Kern 

County Deferred Compensation Plan (“457 Plan”) on a pre-tax basis.  Physician shall make all 

contributions if he elects to participate in the 457 Plan. 

 

6.13 Disability Insurance.  Physician shall be eligible to purchase Long Term 

Disability or Short Term Disability insurance coverage through payroll deduction on a post-tax 

basis.  This is a voluntary benefit that is paid by Physician if he elects to participate in the plan. 

 

6.14 Employee Assistance/Wellness Programs.  Physician shall be eligible to 

participate in any Authority-sponsored employee assistance and employee wellness programs. 

 

6.15 Relocation Reimbursement.  Authority shall reimburse Physician for actual 

relocation expenses (defined as the packing, moving and unpacking of household goods and 

vehicles) and travel expenses (defined as lodging, meals, mileage and incidental expenses) 

associated in moving to Bakersfield, California, in an amount not to exceed $15,000, payable in 

arrears, in accordance with Authority policy.  Reimbursement of travel expenses will include per 

mile reimbursement for one (1) personal vehicle at the current privately owned vehicle (POV) 

mileage reimbursement rate established by the U.S. General Services Administration, meals and 

incidental expenses for Physician only at the current domestic per diem rates established by the 

U.S. General Services Administration for Kern County, and reasonable hotel accommodations 

not to exceed the maximum allowable reimbursement rate including taxes established by 



9 
 

Authority.  Physician shall be deemed vested in reimbursement of relocation expenses in the 

amount of $416.67 per month beginning on the last day of the month in which the relocation 

expenses are reimbursed to Physician.  In the event Physician’s employment is terminated by 

either party, with or without cause, then, on the effective date of such termination, Physician 

shall repay to Authority all amounts received in which Physician has not yet become vested.1 

 

6.16 Limitation on Benefits.  Except as expressly stated herein, Physician shall receive 

no other benefits from Authority. 

 

7. Assignment.  Physician shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or his obligations 

hereunder or any part thereof.  Physician shall not assign any money due or which becomes due 

to Physician under this Agreement without the prior written approval of Authority. 

 

8. Assistance in Litigation.  Upon request, Physician shall support and assist Authority as a 

consultant or expert witness in litigation to which Authority is a party. 

 

9. Authority to Incur Financial Obligation.  It is understood that Physician, in his 

performance of any and all duties under this Agreement, has no right, power or authority to bind 

Authority to any agreements or undertakings. 

 

10. Captions and Interpretation.  Paragraph headings in this Agreement are used solely for 

convenience, and shall be wholly disregarded in the construction of this Agreement.  No 

provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted for or against a party because that party or its 

legal representative drafted such provision, and this Agreement shall be construed as if jointly 

prepared by the parties. 

 

11. Choice of Law/Venue.  This Agreement shall be construed and enforced under and in 

accordance with the laws of the state of California, with venue of any action relating to this 

Agreement in the County of Kern, state of California. 

 

12. Compliance with Law.  Physician shall observe and comply with all applicable 

Authority, local, state and federal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations now in effect or 

hereafter enacted, each of which is hereby made a part hereof and incorporated herein by 

reference. 

 

13. Confidentiality.  Physician shall maintain confidentiality with respect to information that 

he receives in the course of his employment and not use or permit the use of or disclose any such 

information in connection with any activity or business to any person, firm or corporation 

whatsoever, unless such disclosure is required in response to a validly issued subpoena or other 

process of law or as required by Government Code section 6250 et seq.  Upon completion of the 

Agreement, the provisions of this paragraph shall continue to survive. 

 

 
                                                      
1 By way of example only, in the event Physician terminates his employment after 12-months then Physician will be vested to the 

extent of $5,000 in the relocation expenses described herein and will be obligated to repay Authority the amount of $10,000.  In 

the event Physician fails to pay such amount to Authority, Physician expressly grants to Authority the right to offset any 

amounts owed to Authority against any payments made to Physician by Authority. 



10 
 

 

14. Conflict of Interest.  Physician covenants that he has no interest and that he will not 

acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state 

law (Gov. Code, § 81000 et seq.) or that would otherwise conflict in any manner or degree with 

the performance of his services hereunder.  It is understood and agreed that if such a financial 

interest does exist at the inception of this Agreement, Authority may immediately terminate this 

Agreement by giving written notice thereof.   

 

15. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute 

one and the same instrument.  

 

16. Dispute Resolution.  In the event of any dispute involving the enforcement or 

interpretation of this Agreement or any of the rights or obligations arising hereunder, the parties 

shall first attempt to resolve their differences by mediation before a mediator of their mutual 

selection.  If the parties are, after mutual good faith efforts, unable to resolve their differences by 

mediation, the dispute shall be submitted for trial before a privately compensated temporary 

judge appointed by the Kern County Superior Court pursuant to Article VI, section 21 of the 

California Constitution and Rules 3.810 through 3.830 of the California Rules of Court.  All 

costs of any dispute resolution procedure shall be borne equally by the parties. 
 

17. Enforcement of Remedies.  No right or remedy herein conferred on or reserved to 

Authority is exclusive of any other right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided or 

permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other right or remedy given hereunder or now or 

hereafter existing by law or in equity or by statute or otherwise, and may be enforced 

concurrently or from time to time. 

 

18. Indemnification.  Authority shall assume liability for and indemnify and hold Physician 

harmless from any and all claims, losses, expenses, costs, actions, settlements, attorneys’ fees 

and judgments incurred by Physician or for which Physician becomes liable, arising out of or 

related to services rendered or which a third party alleges should have been rendered by 

Physician pursuant to this Agreement.  Authority’s obligation under this paragraph shall extend 

from Physician’s first date of service to Authority and shall survive termination or expiration of 

this Agreement to include all claims that allegedly arise out of services Physician rendered on 

behalf of Authority; provided, however, that the provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to 

any services rendered at any location other than Practice Sites without approval by the Kern 

County Hospital Authority Board of Governors and, provided further, that Authority shall have 

no duty or obligation to defend, indemnify, or hold Physician harmless for any conduct or 

misconduct found to be intentional, willful, grossly negligent, or criminal. 

 

19. Invalidity of a Portion.  Should a portion, section, paragraph, or term of this Agreement 

be construed as invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or a competent state or federal 

agency, the balance of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  Further, to the extent 

any term or portion of this Agreement is found invalid, void or inoperative, the parties agree that 

a court may construe the Agreement in such a manner as will carry into force and effect the 

intent appearing herein. 

 



11 
 

 

20. Modifications of Agreement.  This Agreement may be modified in writing only, signed 

by the parties in interest at the time of the modification. 

 

21. Non-appropriation.  Authority reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in the 

event insufficient funds are appropriated or budgeted for this Agreement in any fiscal year.  

Upon such termination, Authority will be released from any further financial obligation to 

Physician, except for services performed prior to the date of termination or any liability due to 

any default existing at the time this clause is exercised.  Physician shall be given 30 days’ prior 

written notice in the event that Authority requires such an action. 

 

22. Nondiscrimination.  No party to this Agreement shall discriminate on the basis of race, 

color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital status or sexual orientation, ancestry, physical or 

mental disability, medical conditions, political affiliation, veteran’s status, citizenship or marital 

or domestic partnership status or on the basis of a perception that an individual is associated with 

a person who has, or is perceived to have, any of these characteristics. 

 

23. Non-waiver.  No covenant or condition of this Agreement can be waived except by the 

written consent of Authority.  Forbearance or indulgence by Authority in any regard whatsoever 

shall not constitute a waiver of the covenant or condition to be performed by Physician.  

Authority shall be entitled to invoke any remedy available to Authority under this Agreement or 

by law or in equity despite said forbearance or indulgence. 

 

24. Notices.  Notices to be given by one party to the other under this Agreement shall be 

given in writing by personal delivery, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or express 

delivery service at the addresses specified below.  Notices delivered personally shall be deemed 

received upon receipt; mailed or expressed notices shall be deemed received four (4) days after 

deposit.  A party may change the address to which notice is to be given by giving notice as 

provided above. 
 

Notice to Physician: Notice to Authority: 

  

Patrick G. Pieper, M.D. Kern Medical Center 

8850 Mill Creek Road 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Healdsburg, California 95448  Bakersfield, California 93306 

 Attn.: Chief Executive Officer 
 

25. Relationship.  Authority and Physician recognize that Physician is rendering specialized, 

professional services.  The parties recognize that each is possessed of legal knowledge and skill, 

and that this Agreement is fully understood by the parties, and is the result of bargaining between 

the parties.  Each party acknowledges their opportunity to fully and independently review and 

consider this Agreement and affirm complete understanding of the effect and operation of its 

terms prior to entering into the same.   

 

26. Severability.  Should any part, term, portion or provision of this Agreement be decided 

finally to be in conflict with any law of the United States or the state of California, or otherwise 

be unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining parts, terms, portions, or provisions 



12 
 

shall be deemed severable and shall not be affected thereby, provided such remaining portions or 

provisions can be construed in substance to constitute the agreement which the parties intended 

to enter into in the first instance. 

 

27. Sole Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties 

relating to the services, rights, obligations, and covenants contained herein and assumed by the 

parties respectively.  No inducements, representations, or promises have been made, other than 

those recited in this Agreement.  No oral promise, modification, change, or inducement shall be 

effective or given any force or effect. 

 

28. Termination.   

 

28.1 Termination without Cause.  Either party shall have the right to terminate this 

Agreement, without penalty or cause, by giving not less than 90 days’ prior written notice to the 

other party. 

 

28.2 Immediate Termination.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Authority may terminate 

this Agreement immediately by written notice to Physician upon the occurrence of any of the 

following events: (i) Authority determines that Physician does not have the proper credentials, 

experience, or skill to perform the required services under this Agreement; (ii) Authority 

determines the conduct of Physician in the providing of services may result in civil, criminal, or 

monetary penalties against Authority or KMC; (iii) Physician violates any federal or state law or 

regulatory rule or regulation or condition of accreditation or certification to which Authority or 

Practice Sites is subject; (iv) Physician engages in the commission of a material act involving 

moral turpitude, fraud, dishonesty, embezzlement, misappropriation or financial dishonesty 

against Authority or KMC; (v) the actions of Physician result in the loss or threatened loss of 

KMC’s ability to participate in any federal or state health care program, including Medicare or 

Medi-Cal; (vi) Physician’s license to practice medicine in the state of California lapses or is 

denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, relinquished or made subject to terms of probation or 

other restriction; (vii) Physician’s medical staff privileges are denied, suspended, revoked, 

terminated, relinquished under threat of disciplinary action or made subject to terms of probation 

or other restriction; (viii) Physician’s Controlled Substance Registration Certificate issued by the 

Drug Enforcement Administration is revoked, suspended, terminated, relinquished, placed on 

terms of probation, or restricted in any way; (ix) Physician becomes debarred, excluded, or 

suspended, or if any other event occurs that makes Physician an Ineligible Person; (x) Physician 

fails to make a timely disclosure pursuant to paragraph 4.4; (xi) Physician engages in conduct 

that, in the sole discretion of Authority, is detrimental to patient care or to the reputation or 

operations of Authority and/or KMC; (xii) Physician breaches the confidentiality provisions of 

this Agreement; (xiii) Physician dies; (xiv) Physician fails to follow Authority’s policies and 

procedures and other rules of conduct applicable to all employees of Authority, including 

without limitation, policies prohibiting sexual harassment; (xv) insubordination, flagrant 

tardiness, or interpersonal problems in the workplace with colleagues, patients or associates; or 

(xvi) Physician breaches any covenant set forth in paragraph 4.11. 

 

29. Effect of Termination. 

 



13 
 

29.1 Payment Obligations.  In the event of termination of this Agreement for any 

reason, Authority shall have no further obligation to pay for any services rendered or expenses 

incurred by Physician after the effective date of the termination, and Physician shall be entitled 

to receive compensation for services satisfactorily rendered, calculated on a prorated basis up to 

the effective date of termination. 

  

 29.2 Vacate Premises.  Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, 

Physician shall immediately vacate KMC, removing at such time any and all personal property 

of Physician.  KMC may remove and store, at the expense of Physician, any personal property 

that Physician has not so removed. 

   

 29.3 No Interference.  Following the expiration or earlier termination of this 

Agreement, Physician shall not do anything or cause any person to do anything that might 

interfere with any efforts by Authority or KMC to contract with any other individual or entity for 

the provision of services or to interfere in any way with any relationship between KMC and any 

person who may replace Physician. 

  

 29.4 No Hearing Rights.  Termination of this Agreement by Authority or KMC for any 

reason shall not provide Physician the right to a fair hearing or the other rights more particularly 

set forth in the KMC medical staff bylaws. 

 

30. Liability of Authority.  The liabilities or obligations of Authority with respect to its 

activities pursuant to this Agreement shall be the liabilities or obligations solely of Authority and 

shall not be or become the liabilities or obligations of the County of Kern or any other entity, 

including the state of California. 

 

[Signatures follow on next page] 





15 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Job Description 

Patrick G. Pieper, M.D. 

 

Position Summary: Position Summary:  Reports to Chair, Department of Surgery and Chief, 

Division of Otolaryngology; serves as a full-time otolaryngology, head and neck surgeon in the 

Department; serves as Medical Director, Laser and Aesthetics Center; work effort will be a 

minimum of 2,500 hours annually in teaching, administrative, and clinical activity; day-to-day 

activities and clinical workload will include call coverage for facial trauma and general 

otolaryngology; provides comprehensive and safe clinical coverage for day-to-day operations, 

timely completion of surgery, direct patient care, support of resident education; works 

collaboratively with clinic and surgery staff and hospital administration to ensure efficient 

workflow, adequacy of support equipment, and superior patient experience. 

 

Essential Functions: 

 

1. Clinical Responsibilities and Assignments. 

 

 Coordinate with current otolaryngology faculty schedules and activities to provide 

service and improve efficiency for otolaryngology clinical activities 

 Serves as an attending physician in the Division of Otolaryngology 

 Provide service and improve efficiency for otolaryngology surgery cases 

 Provide faculty service for otolaryngology and facial trauma surgery call coverage 

 Supervise surgery Physician Assistant/Nurse Practitioner activity and competence 

 Inpatient rounds – five (5) days per week 

 Otolaryngology Clinic – minimum of two (2) days per week at any KMC location (i.e., 

main hospital campus, Q Street Clinic, Stockdale, Laser and Aesthetics Center, etc.) 

 Laser and Aesthetics Center – minimum of one (1) day per week  

 Operating Room – minimum of two (2) half days per week at any KMC location (i.e., 

main hospital campus or Kern Medical Surgery Center, LLC) 

 Call coverage for facial trauma and general otolaryngology – weekday coverage, Monday 

through Thursday, one (1) in four (4) weekdays up to a maximum of 52 weekday call 

shifts per year; weekend coverage, one (1) in four (4) weekends up to a maximum of 13 

weekends per year 
 

2. Administrative Responsibilities. 
 

 Assist in clinical and administrative integration efforts across KMC as appropriate for 

otolaryngology surgery assisting with proper program planning, surgeon recruitment and 

faculty development, resource allocation, analysis, communication and assessment 

 Gather data through best practices and collaborate with other members of the Department 

to recommend services that will increase productivity, minimize duplication of services, 

increase workflow efficiency, and provide the highest quality of care to KMC patients 

 Support the Department chair to develop monitoring tools to measure financial, access, 

quality and satisfaction outcomes for plastic and hand surgery services 

 Attend and actively participate in assigned Medical Staff and hospital committees 



16 
 

 Participate in clinical and administrative integration efforts across the hospital as 

appropriate for the Department ensuring proper program planning, resource allocation, 

analysis, communication, and assessment 

 Participate in the preparation, monitoring, review, and performance of clinical activity in 

the Department 

 Participate in the quality improvement and risk management activities, including peer 

review and quality control functions as assigned to services in the Department 

 Provide didactic teaching and resident physician and medical student education as 

assigned and participate in setting goals and expectations for the surgery resident and 

medical student rotations 

 Complete medical records in a timely fashion and work to improve the quality, accuracy, 

and completeness of documentation 

 Work collaboratively with other clinical departments to develop a cohesive and 

collaborative environment across departments with a focus of enhancing access to patient 

care for inpatient and outpatient services 

 Follow and comply with the Medical Staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies and 

Authority and KMC policies and procedures 
 

3. Teaching Responsibilities. 

 

 Assist with didactic curriculum and teaching conference activity for otolaryngology 

surgery 

 Assist in resident research and scholarly activity 
 

4. Medical Director Responsibilities for Laser and Aesthetics Center (“Center”). 

 

 Work collaboratively with hospital administration, Center management, and other 

medical and clinical staff at the Center to provide medical supervision 

 Provide clinical oversight of the Center 

 Oversee and support education and training of medical and clinical staff at the Center 

 Support and oversee the development of written policies, procedures, and protocols as 

relates to patient care and obtain approval of such protocols as needed through 

appropriate hospital and medical staff committees 

 Provide oversight to coordinate performance improvement activities 

 Work to ensure excellent care through chart review, direct observation, and data analysis 

 

Employment Standards: 

 

Completion of an accredited residency program in otolaryngology; one (1) year of post-residency 

experience in otolaryngology and head and neck surgery desirable   

AND 

Possession of a current valid Physician’s and Surgeon’s Certificate issued by the state of 

California 

AND 

Certification by the by the American Board of Otolaryngology in head and neck surgery- general  

 



17 
 

Knowledge of:  The principles and practices of modern medicine; current techniques, 

procedures, and equipment applicable to otolaryngology; principles of effective supervision and 

program development. 

 

[Intentionally left blank] 
  

 

  



18 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION 
 
 

[Attached] 





 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  
January 16, 2019 
  
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 14818 with Healthcare Performance Group, Inc. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Amendment No. 2 with Healthcare Performance 
Group, LLC (HPG) to provide an Electronic Health Record Consultant specializing in the Physician Adoption and 
Informatics support requirements of the Cerner Millennium Project. 
 

Previous Agreements  Purpose of Amendment  Increase 

Original Agreement 
May 7, 2018 

Schedule A‐1, Jacqui Pada, EHR Consultant for Clinical 
and Nursing Support 

$232,576 

Amendment No. 1 
September 19, 2018 

Schedule A‐2,  Kayla Smith, EHR Consultant for HIM and 
3M Support 

$217,000 

Amendment No. 2 
January 16, 2019 

Schedule A‐3, Nicole Van Luchene, EHR Consultant role 
for the Physician Adoption and Informatics support 
requirements 

$300,240 

 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Agreement for Professional Consulting Services with 
HPG for the period January 22, 2019 through June 10, 2019, effective January 16, 2019, increasing the maximum 
payable by $300,240, from $450,000 to $750,000 for the professional fees and travel expenses and authorize 
the Chairman to sign. 



1 

 

      HA Agmt. #___________ 

Amendment No. 2 To  
Agreement for Professional Consulting Services  

(Healthcare Performance Group, Inc. – Kern County Hospital Authority) 
 
 
This Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement for Professional Consulting Services is entered into this 
____ day of _____________ 2019, by and between Kern County Hospital Authority, a local unit 
of government, which owns and operates Kern Medical Center (CUSTOMER) and Healthcare 
Performance Group, (HPG). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Customer and HPG have heretofore entered into an Agreement for Professional 
Consulting Services (Customer Agt.#14818, dated May 11, 2018) and Amendment 
No. 1 (Customer Agt.#062-2018, dated September 19, 2018) (“Agreement”) for the 
period of January 22, 2019 through November 29, 2019, to provide professional 
consulting services; and  

B. Customer requires additional services of HPG and HPG has agreed to provide these 
services; and 

C. The parties agree to amend certain terms and conditions of the Agreement as 
hereinafter set forth; and 

D. The Agreement is amended effective January 16th, 2019: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 
agree to amend the Agreement as follow: 

 
1. Schedule A-3 
 
Schedule A-3, to Amendment No. 2 is added to the Agreement and incorporated herein 

by this reference.  
 

2. Except as otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms used in this Amendment No. 
2 have the meaning set forth in the Agreement.  

 
3. This Amendment No. 2 shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 

laws of the state of California.  
 
4. This Amendment No. 2 may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original, but all which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  
 
5. Except as provided herein, all other terms, conditions, and covenants of the 

Agreement and any and all amendments thereto shall remain in full force and effect.  
 

 

hochsteins1
Text Box
June 10, 2019,









 
 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS  

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  

January 16, 2019 

  

SUBJECT:  Proposed retroactive Resolution reaffirming the appointment of Officers of the Kern County 

Hospital Authority, effective December 16, 2018  

  

Recommended Action:  Approve; Adopt Resolution 

  

Summary:  

  

On April 16, 2016, your Board adopted Resolution No. 2016‐004 appointing Russell Judd, Scott Thygerson, 

Andy Cantu, Dr. Glenn Goldis, Jared Leavitt, and Toni Smith, RN, MSN, to serve as initial officers of the 

Hospital Authority.  The action by your Board complied with the state statute, county ordinance, and the 

hospital authority’s Bylaws for Governance.     

 
On January 16, 2019, your Board approved a new Agreement for Professional Services with Meridian 

Healthcare Partners, Inc., for Chief Executive Officer and healthcare management services to the hospital 

authority and Kern Medical.  With approval of the new Meridian agreement, Kern Medical is 

recommending that your Board adopt the attached resolution reaffirming the appointment of the 

following individuals by name and title as officers of the hospital authority, effective December 16, 2018: 

 
Chief Executive Officer:    Russell V. Judd 

    Chief Strategy Officer:     Alton Scott Thygerson 

    Chief Financial Officer:    Andrew J. Cantu 

    Chief Medical Officer:     Glenn E. Goldis, M.D. 

    Chief Operating Officer:    Jared W. Leavitt 

    Chief Nursing Officer:      Antoinette C. Smith, RN, MSN 

 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the recommended action and adopt the attached 

Resolution. 

 
 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

_________________ 
 
 
In the matter of:                   Resolution No. __________ 
 
REAFFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF 
RUSSELL V. JUDD, ALTON SCOTT THYGERSON, 
ANDREW J. CANTU, GLENN E. GOLDIS, M.D., 
JARED W. LEAVITT, AND ANTOINETTE C. 
SMITH, RN, MSN, TO SERVE AS OFFICERS OF 
THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
_____________________________________ 
 
 I, MONA A. ALLEN, Authority Board Coordinator for the Kern County Hospital 
Authority, hereby certify that the following Resolution, on motion of Director __________, 
seconded by Director __________, was duly and regularly adopted by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority at an official meeting thereof on the 16th 
day of January, 2019, by the following vote, and that a copy of the Resolution has been 
delivered to the Chairman of the Board of Governors.  
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
      MONA A. ALLEN 

                 Authority Board Coordinator 
   Kern County Hospital Authority  

          
 
                 ____________________________ 
                 Mona A. Allen             
 
             

 
RESOLUTION 

 
Section 1.  WHEREAS: 

   
 (a) Health and Safety Code section 101855(a)(6) provides that the Kern 
County Hospital Authority shall have the power “to appoint and employ or otherwise 
engage a chief executive officer and other officers and employees that may be necessary 
or appropriate, …and to define the power and duties of officers and employees”; and 



Page 2 of 3 
 
 

(b) Section 2.170.070 of the Ordinance Code of the County of Kern 
(“Ordinance Code”) titled Powers of Hospital Authority provides that “the Hospital 
Authority shall have the power to appoint and employ or otherwise engage a chief 
executive officer and other necessary officers and employees”; and 
 

(c) Section 2.170.080 of the Ordinance Code also provides that the “Board of 
Supervisors shall approve the initial and any successive Chief Executive Officer of the 
Hospital Authority prior to his or her appointment by the Hospital Authority”; and 
 

(d) Section 5.01 of the Hospital Authority Bylaws for Governance provides that 
“the Board of Governors shall appoint a competent and experienced Chief Executive 
Officer, subject to the prior approval by the Board of Supervisors, to have responsibility 
for the general management of the Hospital Authority…Subject to the rights of the Board 
of Supervisors, the Chief Executive Officer shall be employed, contracted with, or 
otherwise engaged by the Hospital Authority”; and 
 

(e) On March 16, 2016, by a unanimous vote of those Directors present, the 
Board of Governors recommended Russell V. Judd be appointed the Chief Executive 
Officer of the Hospital Authority and referred the matter to the Board of Supervisors for 
approval; and 
 

(f) On April 5, 2016, the Board of Supervisors approved the initial appointment 
of Russell V. Judd as the Chief Executive Officer of the Hospital Authority; and 
 

(g) Section 4.03 of the Hospital Authority Bylaws for Governance provides that 
“the Chief Financial Officer shall be appointed by the Chief Executive Officer…. Prior to 
appointing the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Executive Officer shall consult with and 
receive direction from the Board of Governors”; and 
 

(h) On March 16, 2016, Russell V. Judd consulted with and received direction 
from the Board of Governors regarding the appointment of a Chief Financial Officer of the 
Hospital Authority; and 
 

(i) On March 16, 2016, by a unanimous vote of those Directors present, the 
Board of Governors approved the recommendation of Russell V. Judd to appoint Andrew 
J. Cantu as the Chief Financial Officer of the Hospital Authority; and 
 

(j) On April 16, 2016, the Board of Governors adopted Resolution No. 2016-
004 appointing Russell V. Judd, Alton Scott Thygerson, Andrew J. Cantu, Glenn E. 
Goldis, M.D., Jared W. Leavitt, and Antoinette C. Smith, RN, MSN, to serve as initial 
officers of the Hospital Authority; and 

 
(k) The Board of Governors desires to reaffirm the appointment of Russell V. 

Judd, Alton Scott Thygerson, Andrew J. Cantu, Glenn E. Goldis, M.D., Jared W. Leavitt, 
and Antoinette C. Smith, RN, MSN, to serve as officers of the Hospital Authority, 
effective December 16, 2018. 



Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 
Section 2.  NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority, as follows: 
 
 1. This Board finds the facts recited herein are true, and further finds that this 
Board has jurisdiction to consider, approve, and adopt the subject of this Resolution. 
 

2. This Board hereby reaffirms the following individuals by name and title 
as officers of the Kern County Hospital Authority, effective December 16, 2018: 
 
  Chief Executive Officer:  Russell V. Judd 
  Chief Strategy Officer:  Alton Scott Thygerson 
  Chief Financial Officer:  Andrew J. Cantu 
  Chief Medical Officer:  Glenn E. Goldis, M.D. 
  Chief Operating Officer:  Jared W. Leavitt 
  Chief Nursing Officer:  Antoinette C. Smith, RN, MSN 
 

3. The Authority Board Coordinator shall provide copies of this Resolution to 
the following: 
 

Kern Medical Center 
Legal Services Department 
Office of Kern County Counsel 
Kern County Administrative Office 
Clerk of the Kern County Board of Supervisors 

 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
January 16, 2019 
 
Subject:  Comments Regarding Budget Variances for Operating Expenses – November 2018 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
Summary:   
 

The following items have budget variances for the month of November 2018:  
 

Indigent Funding: 
Indigent  funding  revenue  has  a  favorable  budget  variance  for  the month  due  in  large  part  to  a  decision  to 
reserve less revenue from the indigent programs in FY 2019 than was planned when the budget was prepared.  
Additional information received about these programs after the budget was prepared supports a high likelihood 
that these funds will be received.  This will also more properly match revenue with the periods earned. 
     
Registry Nurses: 
Registry nurses expense has an unfavorable budget variance for the month.  Kern Medical continues to rely on 
contracted nurse staffing  to supplement  the nursing departments while aggressively trying to recruit  full  time 
employed nurses. 
 
Other Professional Fees: 
Other professional fees have a favorable budget variance for November due in large part to the careful review 
by the Information Systems Department of all data processing contracts, software, and systems.  The review has 
resulted  in  the  elimination of  some  service  contracts  and other  expenses  that  are  no  longer  needed  as  Kern 
Medical  implements  its new Cerner EHR.   Since many of these  items are budgeted for  in FY 2019,  the budget 
may be erroneously high relative to the actual expenses  incurred each month.    In addition,  legal expenses for 
the month are lower than average.     
 
Supplies Expense: 
Supplies expense has an unfavorable budget variance of $519k for the month of November mainly due to above 
average expenses for pharmaceuticals, including $195k for annual flu vaccination clinics. 

 
Purchased Services: 
Purchased  services  have  an  unfavorable  budget  variance  for  the  month  mainly  due  to  higher  than  average 
ambulance fees. 
 
Other Expenses: 
Other expenses are over budget for the month of November due to various repairs and maintenance projects 
throughout the hospital and the clinics. 



Comments Regarding Budget Variances for Operating Expenses – November 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
 
Interest Expense: 
Interest expense has an unfavorable budget variance for the month.  Interest expense was budgeted low for FY 
2019  based  on  amortization  schedules  for  the  pension  obligation  bonds  that  do  not  accurately  report  the 
expense  actually  charged  to  Kern  Medical.    To  avoid  the  need  for  a  large  true‐up  adjustment  for  interest 
expense at  year‐end,  a decision was made  to accrue additional  interest expense each month  throughout  the 
fiscal year. 
 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ FINANCIAL REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – NOVEMBER 2018

JANUARY 2019



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



Slide 7



Slide 8



Slide 9



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
January 16, 2019 
 
Subject:  Kern County Hospital Authority, Chief Executive Officer Report 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
Summary: 
 
The Chief Executive Officer has provided the attached 3‐month trend Analysis: Volume and Strategic Indicators 
for Kern Medical 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ VOLUMES REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – NOVEMBER 2018

JANUARY 2019



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



 
 

 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
January 16, 2019 

 

Subject:  Proposed retroactive Agreement with Meridian Healthcare Partners, Inc. 
 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize the Vice Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 

 
Kern Medical requests your Board retroactively approve the attached proposed new Agreement 
for Professional Services with Meridian Healthcare Partners, Inc., for Chief Executive Officer and 
healthcare management services to the hospital authority and Kern Medical.  Meridian has 
provided such services since December 16, 2013.   
 
The proposed Agreement, which supersedes the existing agreement, is for a term of seven years 
from December 16, 2018 through December 15, 2025, and contains an option to extend the term 
for three additional terms of two‐years each.  The financial terms remain the same: As previously 
negotiated and reflected in Amendment No. 9, approved by your Board on October 17, 2018, 
Meridian will be paid a monthly management fee of $420,207 for the period December 16, 2018 
through December 15, 2019, and $432,814, for the period December 16, 2019 through December 
15, 2020 (a 3% increase over the prior year).  In the 90‐day period prior to December 16, 2020, and 
each subsequent December 16, the parties have agreed to meet and confer in good faith regarding 
the management fee paid to Meridian.  If the parties are unable to reach an agreement concerning 
the management fee before the applicable anniversary date, the then‐current management fee 
will remain in effect until an agreement is reached, subject to possible retroactive adjustment if 
agreed.  The compensation paid to Meridian covers all costs and expenses to provide the services.  
The maximum payable will not exceed $10,236,768 for the period December 16, 2018 through 
December 15, 2020. 
 
The proposed Agreement also reflects a change in the process for appointing the Chief Executive 
Officer.  Instead of Meridian providing a specified individual by name, Meridian’s obligation now is 
to engage or employ a “competent and experienced individual” to serve as Chief Executive Officer.  
Such individual remains subject to appointment by your Board and the prior approval of the Kern 
County Board of Supervisors, pursuant to the Authority’s enabling ordinance.  This change 
eliminates any contractual obstacle to succession planning should the need arise and facilitates the 
preservation of the culture, relationships, systems, experience and goodwill Meridian has 
cultivated over the past five years within the county, Kern Medical, the community and healthcare 
industry.  The responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer and Meridian remain unchanged. 
 

Therefore, it is recommended that your Board retroactively approve the Agreement with Meridian 

Healthcare Partners, Inc., and authorize the Vice Chairman to sign. 

 









































































 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on January 16, 2019, to consider: 
 
 
   X    PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive 
Officer (Government Code Section 54957) –     
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold a closed 
session on January 16, 2019, to consider: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Vice President & General Counsel Karen S. Barnes and designated staff – Unrepresented 
Employee: Chief Executive Officer (Government Code Section 54957.6) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
January 16, 2019, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Genovenva Robles, et 
al. v. Kern Medical Center, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-17-
102395 TSC –  
 

 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on January 16, 2019, the premature disclosure of which would create a 
substantial probability of depriving the authority of a substantial economic benefit or 
opportunity.  The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on 
authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) –  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold a closed 
session on January 16, 2019, to consider: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee organizations: 
Committee of Interns and Residents/Service Employees International Union, Local 1957 
(Government Code Section 54957.6)  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 


	Agenda
	#3 Recognition
	#4 Summary of Proceedings - December 12, 2018
	#5 Change Order #8 Anderson Group International
	#6 CIOX Health LLC
	#7 Craneware, Inc.
	#8 Patrick G. Pieper, MD
	#9 Healthcare Performance Group
	#10 Resolution Reaffirming the Appointment of Officers
	#11 CFO Report - November 2018
	#12 CEO Report - November 2018
	#14 Meridian Healthcare Partners, Inc. Agreement
	#15 Public Statement regarding Closed Session
	#16 Public Statement regarding Closed Session
	#17 Public Statement regarding Closed Session 
	#18 Public Statement regarding Closed Session
	#19 Public Statement regarding Closed Session



